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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members of Max Asset Services Limited

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Max Asset Services Limited
("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and olher explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required hy the Companies Art, 20173
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, of its loss and total comprehensive income (comprising loss and other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended on that

date.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethice. We baliava that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Coampany’s Naard of Directors is cwspuneible fue Ui uthor  Information. The other
information comprises the information included in the director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conncction with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read Lhe other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the

other Informatlion is matcrially incongistent with the financial statemieinls i i knuwlt—w_lul—_ﬂ
obtained in the audit or otherwise ap rs to be materially misstated.
by £/

& conclude that there is a material misstatement
e matter to those charged with governance and
e relevant laws and reqgulations.

When we read the director’SQ5
therein, we are required to ¢eyn,
take appropriate action as apph
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with goVe-rnance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounling principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisinns of the Act for sateguarding the asscts of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
wholo aro froe from matcrial misatntement, whathar due Lo flaud ui v, did Lo Issue dii
audilui's 1epuil thal Includes vur oplnlon. Reasonable assurance is a high level ot assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence Lhe economle declslons of users taken on the basis ot these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or crror, design and pertorm audit procedures responsive lu Uiuse iisks, dand
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

gtnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that arg ap "rLt‘;l'e Uie cicuinslanices, Under Secllon 143(3) (1) of the Act,
©xee5sing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate



internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ [valuate the overall precentation, ctructure and content of the rlinancial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kepl by Lhe
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards.

¢

On the basis of the written representations receired-from the directors as on




With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”; and

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i)

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact
Its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsocver hy or on hehalf of the Company (CUltimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
enlity, including forelgn entlty (“"Funding Pailies”), wilhi Lhe
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable

(ii) of Rule 11(e), as
material misstatement.




(v)

(vi)

DINESH
Partner
Membership
Forand on b
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The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and
hence provisions of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made
using privileged/ administrative access rights, as described in note 36 (viii)
to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature belng tampered with In
respect of other accounting software.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from Aptil L, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companles
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

No. 097820
ehalf of

R KD B & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:- N500427
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1.

Annexure “"A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,

2024, we report that:
In respect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asscts:

(a) (i) As the Company has mainlained pioper ceconds shiowiog Tl paticolaes, o loeling
quantitative detail and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangihle
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in property, plant & equipment of the company and
accordingly, the requirements under accuirdingly, the iequiteinenls under paiayiaph 3(i)(L) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has
not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company
does not hold any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder, if so. Hence no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company.

(a) The invenltory has been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate.
The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records

were not material.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions during any point of time of the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e)
and 3(iii)(f) are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities given in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable to the company. Accordingly clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any

. According to the information and explanation

deposits during the year.

we are informed that the
antral Government under sub-

maintenance of cost records has not been prescyil
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2



7. According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and any
other statutory dues, as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According ‘to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed- amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company, there is no due in respect of income tax, goods and service tax and duty of
customs as on 31t March, 2024 which have not been deposited on account of disputes.

8. According to the informalion and explanalions given Lo us and based on our examination of Lhe
records of the Company, there is no transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the books and
records examined by us, the term loans taken during the year have been applied for the
purposes for which those were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order Is not applicable to the Company,

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f)
ul thie Oider is nul applicable.

10.(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loan during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or placement of shares during the
year.

11.(a) No fraud by the Company ang material fraud on the Company has been notices or
reported during the year.




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no whistle blower
complaints received during the year by the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, all transaction with
related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to financial Statement, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provision of section 177 are not applicable to the
company and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xiii) in so far as it relates to section 177 of
the Act is not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies

Act 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(¢) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Group
has one CIC which is registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records ol Lhie Cotnipatty, Lhe company has Incurred cash losses In the year under audit and has
not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been the resignation of the statutory audi
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor




19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

20.The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act 2013 does not apply to the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

<=2 0,00

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of

R KD B & Associates LLP,
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- N500427

OOIN § 24093820BKBL QR 2232,
New Delhi, dated the

20t May, 2024




“"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MAX ASSET SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Max Asset
Services Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporling issued by Lhe Inslilute of
Chartered Accountants of Indla. These responsibilities include Uie desigii, unplenentativie and
mainlenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requitemenls and plan and perform Llhe audit to obtaln reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul Lhe adeyuacy of Ui
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
- weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
cunbiul based un Lhe assessed sk, The preoeeloees selecltoed  depend  on Lthe auaditor's
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of imdlerial misslalemenl of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our auyei ijon on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (L) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasondble detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactlons are recorded as necessdary Lo permil
preparalion ol linancial  slalemenly  In oceordance  wilh  generally  accoplud  accuunling
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Keporting 1ssued by the Lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.

— 00

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of
RKDRBPR Azxoclate= LLP,
Chartered Accountants

FRN:- N500427

OOoIN . 2M083820AKALQR2221
New Delhi, dated the

20t May, 2024




Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Notes As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 29.91 8.40
Right of use assets 681.12 1,192.71
Investment Property 4 25043 372.05
Other Intangible assets 5 0.01 0.01
Finnneial aopets <]
(i) Tnvestments - 444513
(i) Trade receivables 627.18 897.73
(iii) Other financial assets 737.26 398.07
Deferred tax assets 7 221.37 300.27
Other non current assets 8 118.06 112.06
2,665.34 7,726.43
Current assets
Inventories 9 12.17 14.57
Financial assets 10
(i) Trade receivables 711.61 509.99
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 47.39 48.72
(i) Other financial assets 298.78 -
Other current assets 11 243.83 308.85
1,313.78 882.13
TOTAL ASSETS 3,979.12 8,608.56
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 (i) 205.00 205.00
Other equity 12 (ii) (2,108.49) 2,381.58
Total equity (1,903.49) 2,586.58
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 6.34 -
(ii) Lease Liabilities 13 815.82 1,327.95
(iii) Other financial liabilities 13 142011 907,33
LONE et provisions 14 29.76 10.73
2,272.03 2,336.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15
(i) Borrowings 1,284.25 1,994.57
(ii) Lease Liabilities 110.72 107.30
(iii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 24.02 -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 1,239.57 1,058.88
(iv) Other financial liabilities 690.99 473.54
Other current liabilities 16 121.14 40.76
Short term provisions 17 139.89 10.93
3,610.58 3,685.98
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,882.61 6,021.98
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,979.12 8,608.56
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-38







The accomp: are integral part of the financial statements

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Parter

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of

RKDB & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN: N500427

New Delhi, dated the 20th May,2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Asset Services Limited

G

(Director) (Director)
(DIN 08490762) (DIN 00329411)

inghaney /——-






Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particuars Notes for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 18 3,095.60 3,580.32
Other income 19 296.85 214.25
Total income 3,392.45 3.794.57
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost 20 40.51 1,015.55
Employee benefits expense 21 404.33 244.40
Finance costs 22 358.83 413.72
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 217.58 198.84
Other expenses 24 2,204.93 1,788.47
Total expenses 3,226.18 3,660.98
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 166.27 133.59
Exceptional item 24(i) 4,445.12 -
Profit/(Loss) before Las (4,278.85) ] 133.59
Tax expenses
- Current tax 139.37 -
- Tax Relating to previous year - 722
- Deferred tax 77.67 31.79
Total tax expense 217.04 39.01
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (4,495.89) 94.58
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) not to be reclassified to profit or loss (1.58) (0.49)
Income tax effect 0.40 0.12
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (1.18) (0.37)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (4,497.07) 94.21
Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share Rs.10/-) (refer note 26)
Basic (Rs.) (219.31) 4.61
Diluted (Rs.) (219.31) 461
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-38
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Assct Services Liwmiled
The ing n:ﬁlm in:El part of the financial statements % ;
DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS Rishi Raj Kishansingh Ramsinghaney
Partner > ¢ (Director) (Director)
Membership No. 097820 (DIN 08490762) (DIN 00329411)
For and on behalf of
RKDB & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:N500427

New Delhi, dated the 20th May,2024







Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Statement of cash flows for theyear ended March 31,2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax (4,278.85) 133.59
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 217.58 198.84
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit (73.76) 64.28
Employee Stock Option Expense 6.99 2.57
Interest income (5.59) (177.85)
Liabilities no longer required written back (6.93) -
Exceptional Items 444512 -
Profit on derecognition of Right of Use Asset (73.37) -
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 358.83 349.44
Operating profit / (Loss) before working capital changes 590.02 570.87
Warking capital adjustments:
Increase in oller current finanacial lnhilities 21745 (47.69)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and prepayments 134.01 (857.U6)
Increase in other non current finanacial assets (339.19) (31.78)
Increase in other non current finanacial liabilities 496.55 310.48
Increase in inventories 240 1.86
(Decreuse) / luciedse i ullici caricnt liability 80,38 (1.10)
Increase in other enrrent financial assets (298.78) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 22027 181.6b
Cash generated from operations 1,103.11 127.24
Income tax paid (6.00) (20.08)
Net cash flows used in operating activities 1,097.11 107.16
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets, CWIP and capital (41.22) (174.04)
advances, Investment Property)
Interest received 5.59 177.85
Net cash flows used in investing activities (35.63) 3.81
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Long term /Short term borrowings (703.98) 147.31
Interest paid (358.83) (260.99)
Employee Stock Option - (2.57)
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,062.81) (116.25)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1.33) (5.28)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 40,72 54.00
Cashi and cash equiviloniy ut yuur vl 47.39 48.72
Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
As at As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 46.14 35.73
Cash on hand 1.25 12.99
47.39 48.72
Particulars As at Others As at
1st April, 31st March, 2024
2023
Long term/ short term Borrowings 1,994.57 (703.98) 1,290.59
Investments 4,445.13 (4,445.13) -
Total 6,439.70 (5,149.11) 5,729.38
Particulars As at Others Asat
Ist April, 31st March, 2023
2022
Short term Borrowings 1,847.26 147.31 1,994.57
Investments 4,445.13 - 4,445.13
Total 6,292.39 147.31 6,439.70
Summary of significant accounting policie; 2
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2024

Partner
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(Director) (Director)
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a) Equity share capital
Particulars Nos. (Rs.in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2022 20,50,000 205.00
Add: Equity share issued during the year (refer note 12) - } -
As at March 31, 2073 T U 205.00
Add: Equity share issued during the year (refer note 12) - -
As at March 31, 2024 20,50,000 205.00
b) Other equity (Rs.in Lacs)
Particulars Reserves & surplus | Employee stock Compulsos Other
™ s “emipdlsoxily Total equity

Retained earnings Debentures income
As at March 31, 2022 (2,185.01) 8.73 4,446.00 15.08 2,284.80
Profit/(Loss) for the year 94.58 - - - 94.58
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - (0.37) (0.37)
Addition during the year - 2.57 - - 257
As at March 31, 2023 (2,090.43) 11.30 4,446.00 14,71 238158
Profit/(Loss) for the year (4,495.89) . ™ s (4,495.89)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - (1.18)) (1.18)
|Addition during the - 6.99 - - 6.99
As at March 31, 2024 (6,586.32)) 18.29 4.446.00 1354 (2,108.49,
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
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Max Asset Services Limited

CIN:
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

o

1
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Corporate Information

Max Asset Services Limited (the Company) is a company registered under Companies Act, 2013 and incorporated on 23rd August 2016. The Company engaged in the business of Facility Management.
Registered office of the Company is located at 419, Bhai Mohan Singh Nagar, Village Railmajra, Tehsil Balachaur, Nawanshehar, Punjab - 144533
The financial were ised for issue in dance with a resolution of the di on 20th May 2024,

Material Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
These scparate financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

{as amended from time to time) and presentation mlﬂrmxsufdivhimﬂofswodukmhmccp-niuAuZOl!tlndAS Compliant Schedule II), as applicable to these separate financial statement.

The financial statements bave been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and. liabilities which have been measured at fair value
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that arc measured at fir value
Financial Smmmu::pr:smwdinmklnd-nnlummundedwmhutmm.ﬂommwbm otherwise stated

Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and lhbilitiesinm:hll.smemhsedmummunm-amtchssiﬁuﬁm.hlsdismednumun when itis:
(i)wmhmlﬁmuwwksddwmmedinmmﬂopmﬁngqﬂ:

(i) Held primarily for the purposc of trading

(11i) Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or
(il-')mhm'mheqni\:lm'lmhssrmimdﬁumbdngm:hngedormﬁmsmka]hhﬂity for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A Liability is current when:
G)nhawu:mémh:scwedinmuupmﬁnqus

(1) 1t s beld primarily for the purpose of trading

{ﬁi]nhmmsmledwhhinlwd\emmhlﬂammﬁngpaiud.a

(iv) There is no itional right to defer the of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifics all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The operating cycle is the tir the isition of assets for ing and their

Property, Plant and Equipment
Undnl.heprwimuGAAP(hdimGAAP).aﬂumwmumhummsmnmlﬂ Tati impai losses, if any. On the date of transition to IND AS,

the Company has applied exemption of Ind AS 101 to continue carrying value of all property, plant and equipment as at the date of transition as its deemed cost.

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less and i losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxcs,
duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to isition and installation of the assets and are further sdjusted by the amount of CENVAT credit and VAT credit
lnilﬂiwhswlpp]imblc.\\'hmﬁmihntmofphmﬂquhnmmmuﬂbdwhwhmnmmeCmm‘ iates them based on their respective useful lives. Likewise,
when a major i ion is its cost is ized in the carying amount of the plant and equi asa if ition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Anitem of property, plant and equi and any signil part initially ized is i upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on ition of the as the diffe by lhcnadispcsn]p-ucnislndﬂwurryingmmmlwfmclm)ismdedhlh:hmemlmwbmﬂnmuisdamnimd,

mMmﬁhmmhﬁmuruwmwmﬂhnm scparately, ifnnmmpunmzlpmm;amwmissigniﬁunlmlheiwlooﬂoﬂh:usamdhasuse:ﬁn][ir:mnis
materially different from that of the remaining asset.

CtpihlI-m‘k—h-pmp’essinchdsmslnfm,pknlmequimmdﬂ'hlstlﬂaliouflmdﬂdndopmmllsll\hebﬂhneemdlm

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Dq:lm‘xn’onenmy.plamndmipnmthpmvisbdmnmhhsiswmigm-h:mﬂhoduingLhemﬁdhesuflhensﬂs:sﬁmawdby and in ibed in Schedule IT of
the Companies Act 2013. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years

Office equipment 5 Years

Computers 3 Years

Investment property

Recognition and initial measurement
I VPSR ARRSIA Afh masermd mrd s of thors st ﬁ,q_‘.ﬁ[:,‘;,_,j,‘;_e haussetuu Vo, Tl uwst

et I »ﬂ"-'q‘-fw{wwdwwulwunumummmmm-um-m 1]
ptlmtnnp'rz. g cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. When signi parts of the i property quis mmmw-nm,momwammayweawmmsgmww
Propa'lyh:]dmdulmseisdasiﬁedasiumumprwwhmizishddwmrmhlsuru-clpiullpp:ci:ﬁcnrri:rbolh.rlli:::lhnﬁrsﬂ:h!ﬁeudmmurhuinmwﬁrnminm-ﬂw
um!.uhuhul.'u[m.lmu.5ubaqgumlwouu¢mlmmmlnelm'smym;lmnlu 'unsqnnunm- iate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
lhciumwil:lﬂnwwuﬁm.ummmdmmmm@mmmlememnfpmﬁlmhssumnnmhdmmewswrmphﬁngmudhmwingmmm-m
ion projects if the ition criter are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreviales Ui sepamately hased an their specific

weefis] Tiowe, AL wihow ropale and malBlenanes wosls ai. iasgiibsial i el ks us bicusred.

De-recognition
T 10 ol ot s s dmsg bl odiditn @A) U9 LRWG AL ULBJAURAL UL U \blitn ey e PERMARERLY Wilbdiaw i Livw use and o liture econome beneth Is expected trom therr disposal. The

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

Intangible assets
hhngﬂ:knsasmqniredmm&ymmnsmmhﬁanemgniﬂmﬂmmhwa:ghkhlmnhimhhngmkummmdumlm ization and d impais
losses, if any. Internally generated i ibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitali and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the nurchase nriee: and any attritwtahle rost af hringing tha aeree 1o itg wasliing seaditicn for it tutesded use.
The usefil lives orhn@hnmmumudmaﬁﬂwmind:ﬁnhe.hungmhnmwi& finite lives are amortized over their usefil economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an.

indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The i period and th ion method for an i asset with a finit ful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expx jpatter of of future i bodied in the asset is ﬁrbychmgin.glhemmiaﬁmperiodormhod.nlmupﬂamaud
are treated as changes in ing estimates. The ization expense on i assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.

ivi or at the cash- ing unit level. The of indefinite life is reviewed

Intangible assets with indefinite usefol lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either i
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. I not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising Ecmd.ispuulﬂflhcin!lng'hleassﬁsmmﬂxnmﬂaslbediﬁﬂtm:bawnI.h:mldisposa]pmceu:lsmdlh:ﬂnyﬁlgamﬂmloflhclssamdmmwgnimdinmtmlmofpmﬁ:
and loss when the assets are disposed off

Intangible assets with finite useful uﬁmmmmm-m@xmmsmmsmmwumrs-em‘

. Impairment of non financial assets

‘The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's, recoverable 2mount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable

transactions are taken into account, ifavailable. If no such transactions can
for nubliclv traded eommanies or other available Bir value indicators






The Company bases its impaiment cakulation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared scparately for each of the Company's cash-gencrating units to which the individual assets are
auoummﬁcbndgdsmdhmﬂnhlhliomuegma:ﬂymglpaiodcfﬁvem.hrlhminhgmmunicBﬁeoflbeummnsh—gm!h;mil(t(iu)‘amwmgmwﬂlnl:'uuku]lkd
mdlpplindwpujuuﬁmnmshﬂawnllcrmcﬁnhyur.Tnuﬁmheu:hﬂwpmjwﬁmsb:ymdpuindsw\mbythcmmmml the Company cash flow projections in
lhcbudgamhgulnﬂyurdediajngmwmme&wmqmmm:minnmingm:mbemuﬁm.hlhiscs:lhcyvﬂhnrcdwmuomdlhclmz—mnmg:gmwﬁnmﬂwme

products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Afler impai iation is provids he revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining economic life.

An assessments is made at cach reporting date as 10 whether there is any indicati that previously ized impai losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s or cash ing unit’s amount. A i ized impai loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
m’:mmmﬁmmhﬂhphnmlwwumnmmmlislimiiadsonmumgmlnrmnwmmmiumwmtmmwmg
amount that would have been d ined, net of iation, had no impai loss been ized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset
is camried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another eatity.

(i) Financial assets

The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories :-

- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other ive income or fit & loss)
- Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement
AI.Iﬁmm:ialmmmnimdinhiau;rnflin:iueplus,inubeusenfﬁmuu‘:lnmnﬂmcmkdalﬁirmmlhwghmilnrlms.msauioncommmmnmmbkwlh:naniﬁmofm
fnancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame establi by ion or ion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized oa the
trade date, ie, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of financial assets lassified in four
(i) Debt instruments at amortized cost

(i) Deht instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVITL)

Uebt instruments at amortized cost

A'debt i ent' is measured at th ized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i) Dusiness muodel test - Thie asset is beld within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to
released its G value Giasge), and

i) Cash Bow characteristics test - Conmactmal 1ems af the asset give rise on spacified dates 10 sach Aewy that ara anlely

ot A el aiel Dol (OPTT) g tha, pa i dal ausin vuisaidlug,

This category is Uic suost iwdovant v (e Cowpany. Afler Lulilal measurement, Such Hodncial asseds are suhsequently measimed at amortizd et using the effective intervet rate (EIR) mothod. Amentined east is
nh:h!:ﬂb,vhﬁnginwmmylﬁswlml(rmimquu'ni:ionlnd!'csu'msuﬂnlmmimegn]pinof!h:mﬁmkm:nulhnmh’dimmﬂzaﬁmwdﬁmnﬂshm over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, whﬂeawwx'ul:!nlh:gmsumgmmlofﬁnmdnnm.wmmhmm:i&ﬁmhmmnhw:mpnyaﬁmuwmﬁ
cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profitor loss This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and loss
FVTPLis a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrament, which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCL is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on 2 Debt instrument
‘that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is recognized in statement of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in

the peviod in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial position)

‘when

-the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
~the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through®

armangement and either;

(2) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
[b)meCompanyhasrminedm:mmﬂghlwmﬁwlheushnmnﬂhem]mmnmslmhmwﬁaﬁwwmmmhﬂw:mm:mmmpm.

Where the Company has transferred an assa,themennymlubvhﬂhﬂhhasm&mdsubﬂnﬁallynl“h:risks:ndmxdsufmcawmshipurm: financial assets. In such cases, the financial asset
isdcmeugnimd_Wh::ﬂ:mﬁtym;wmshndsubmnﬁxﬂyaumeﬁshmmﬂsufmmipwmeﬁnmhllmmcﬁnmddnmhmmm

%aelbeCommvhﬁsnehhmw:ﬁrum:inlatmwvmain:mbthminiy;uﬁ:hmdnm:dlufmmsh'vomcﬁmnda]ammﬁmnddumhhwﬁaﬂifﬂ:tmmmm
retzined control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be ized 1o the extent of continuing i in the financial asset.

Inventories

Inventories comprise completed units for sale and propety wder construction (Work in progress)-

(A) Completad Unsold inventory is valucd st lower of cost and net realisalile value. Cind is dktermined by Including cost of land, malerals, vervives and related overhoads.

(B) Work in progress is valued at cost. Cost ises value of land (ir i rights), materials, services and other overheads related 1o projects under construction.







Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for and ition of i loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost,

- Financial assets measured at fir value through other comprebensive income (FVTOCI),

The Company follows “simplified approach™ for ition of impai loss alk on trade recei Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
lu:ngnimsimpeirmmhssa]hwmbuuimliﬂnﬁneiculluduwcm'ngd-llc.righlmiuhﬁhl:uwgnhbn.m:mwnyussapmvisimmmmmimmmlossallcwanmmll:
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defiult rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting
maThchismialobsuwddd}ullnn:sm@dawdmd&mguinl.h:ﬁ-wudloolu‘ngstimummbm,

Fﬂ'mmguﬂiuuofimpaitm‘lussunol.h:rwummﬂﬁmﬂmﬂcanpmydﬂmhﬁwhdhaMMbnmlngniﬁmtminmeunﬁlrisksimeinilhlreeogniﬂon.lfudilriskm
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a signil B in credit risk since initi ition, then the Company reverts 1o recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- moaths ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to d I " portfolio of trade recei The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defiult rates
mmwﬁﬁnfmmumuimhhmhmjmhmmbﬁngaﬁmn.Alum-mﬁngdau.lh:hisluﬁulu!nmnﬂaeﬁultrammupdaludmdchmgsinlkﬁxwrd-looldng
estimates are analysed.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Cuﬂ!:ny classification of tmancia! assets and labilities o0 initial menenition Afier inifial rroanifion nn rclarsification s mada e Fmsmsisl 120y whigh 107 oty laesiay sad
Bassial Labiitions P Musssedal wasets wbiks wit dolh lusuuituts, & IeUassUAALG 15 LLSGE GHIY 1 LBETE 16 § ERARGE 18 1Bé Businéss model for managmg those assets. Changes o the business model are
expected o be infrequent. The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or intemal changes which arc significant to the Company's operations. Such
changes are evident 1o external partics. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases 10 perform an activity that is significant to its operations. 1f the Company reclassifies

financial assets, it applies the rec. ively from the ificati muwmismcﬁmu.yum:mm,«mmmmmmmmmmw.mCmm
Auan b rwtale many Gawsiomals sestinidnal eubin Bansin o bllig Wigeeinen i (0 1o oF i,

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company
financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraf, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables.

‘The measurement of financial lisbilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents lisbilities R:rgmdslndserviaspmﬁ&:ibutcunpmymumm:ndufﬁnudnlmwhkhmnmid.mnmmummnadludmmmﬂymidwhhm%day:ol‘
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current lishilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
‘measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial ﬁlhﬂh.isalﬁh\ﬂwthmughmﬁ:ﬂlﬂssinduﬂ:ﬁnmﬁalihbﬂﬂiﬁb:ldfa'md.'mgmdmmbmmmwmlmua!ﬁhmmﬂmﬁmm,Fm
liabilities are classified as held for trading imzyl.r:innmudﬂrLhepm'poseofr:pmdusinginlhenﬂrm.Gninsulmcsmlhhiliﬁcsheldﬁxmdingmnwgnimdinthcshlmmafmﬁtmhn
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and cnly if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For
lisbilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCL These gains/ Joss are not subsequently transferred 1o profit and loss. However, the
Cwmmymmhm:wmhdwgahmlosswmeqmy.wmminﬁ?lvllueofsud:Iilh'xlitylr:mmsnisalinlhemlunm!cfp:uﬁlalmmTh:Cmpmyhunﬂdeﬁgmmﬂmyﬁnuu’xl
Tiabiliy s at fair value trough profil aid ks,

Loans and borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
mdhai(iaiusmdlmmmgnk:dinpnﬁluluuwmmcﬁabﬂh'umd:moguixdlsweﬂumghlkm ization Process. ised cost is by taking into account any discount

or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts
Fmandalgmnu:wnnmsimndhy:heCommym!im:mmn.snnuequinaplymmzwb:mdcl.om'mhmtbeholdaIwamilimnbeummespedﬁdmﬁnswmnpmwhm
dminlmdanacwilhmnamsnhahmmLlemmmmmmhdmuyulhbmufahva.lu:.adjnsln!ﬁx i that are directly to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss alk ined as per impai i of IND AS 109 and the amount recognised less curnulative
amortization.

Derecognition
Amwmmﬁwwmwmmmummummawam,mmmwmhnwnwwmmlemmmw
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an chang, ication is treated as the ition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
di in th i ying amounts is ised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
seftle on a pet basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue Recognition
Revenuc is recognired to the extent that it is probsble that the economic benefits will tlow to the Company and the revenue can be relisbly weasured. The following specific recognition eriteria must also be

met before revenue is recognized:

(i) Revenue is recognised over time if either of the following conditions is met:

a. Buyers take all the benefits of the property as real Pers construct the prop -
b. Buyers obtain physical possession of the property

¢. The property unit to be delivered is specified in the contract and real ity does not have an ive use of the unit; the buyer does not have the discretion to terminate the contract and the entity has
hmmnfﬁ&mﬁﬁmkmmwaﬂdkm@hﬂaupﬂhﬁnﬁmewmLbeemmluflhewnpmyispsscdmwmewsmﬁ.

(i) Revenue from shared services

Revenue from shared services is recognized over the period of contract, as and when services are rendered.

(iif) Revenue from project !

Revenue from project I dment is ized as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered.

(iv) Gain on sale of investments
On disposal ofan Mmmdmmmmmlmmdmlmhtwisedmmemﬁundlmshmml.
(¥) Interest and direct :Winnam'bnublehspuﬁﬁzpmmmctpmlﬁedhhmnfmij other interest and indirect costs are treated as ‘Period Cost’ and charged to Profit & Loss account in the

(vi) All other incomes and expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis.

Taxes

Current income tax
lehm:uxmml.'ubilixiua:emaxmnd:!Ih:moumtupeaedmbemvuuiﬁmmpuidwthewﬁonamiﬁshamdmmwﬂhmmTuAd,l%l:ndlhcim:n:mp\mﬁon
and disclosure standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that or substantivel i
leinm:mrdaﬁngmimmgniudomidemﬁ!uhsis:muguizedmsidemﬁlw!ms(dlh:hmhgmmpehmﬁwinmeminquhﬂleuximsmmagnimdinmn:hﬁm:n
memdalyingmumhndﬁ:cinDCIadh-ealyhequity.Mmgmpdwmnﬁmmmhmmhummwhhmmmsimﬁminwhim:ppﬁmhlemmgnﬂaﬁmsmwbjmm
i ion and bl isions where i

enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the hability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Defierred tax lizbilities are recognised for all taxable temporay differences

Defiared tax assets are ized for all i i meanyﬁumxdurwusuauxa-ndis;ndwmmmm.bdammummmnhndwmcmxmﬁmmbh
that taxable profit will be available 2gainst which the deductible tem; differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized
mmﬁngmmmrdei:mdmmi:micwadala:hrqnﬁngweandmwu:::m:uma\itisnolongapmbubkmlwﬁdmtunblepoﬁ‘wiubensailabl:walhwa!.ln-pannfm
Qﬁnedlumﬁlnb:nliljanUnmcognizaddekredmassﬂsmwsﬁsﬁdatunﬁmuﬁngdﬂcmdmmgnbedm!hmlﬁmil]ﬂsbwmmeprohahl:lhumcnxablepnﬁlswilhlluwlbe
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Dd‘m:dwussdsandLiabilin'ummﬂsmed-luzuz.mesummaqxuudmapplyinmeyurwmlhcassaisxal.izndu-lh:!iabilizyisswled.basedouuxms(ndhxlaws)mathawbmmm
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is e
ion to the underlyi ion either in OCI or directly in e







-

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offiet if legally enforceable right exists 10 set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal inmmculdwiugm::pudﬁudpuiod,in.wpeﬁcdh
which MAT credit is allowed to be camied forward. The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement™ asset at cach reporting date and writes down the asset 1o the exient the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attril 1o the ion or production of an asset that ily takes a ial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of

m:nostuflbeusa.Aﬂzﬂuhmvwingmm:wsdinthepeﬂod'mwhidzl.hcynmmBetmingmum:inoﬁnnmslmmhumhtmeudq«mhmndm-ﬁhmebomwinsvfﬁm.
ing cost also inchudes exchange diffe th regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

TheCnmpmyapplisls‘mgle:wogniljanudmﬂmlpmmdl f(rllllasu.emeplfushmvlnmleuuandlﬁsaofhw—nhnm.lbchlmnymgnimlﬁscﬁnbiﬁﬁsmmknm
mmhmﬁmﬂﬁmmwm:r&wwmmminglm.

Company as a lessee
A;eueisd.:ssifudlllh:inuq:nimd.n:-snI.'mnnckaxormnpu-ninghs:AleajeImttnmsi:rsmbslanﬂulyl]ilhelislulndmrdsinddmhlluwm:hiplotheCmpm_visdmiﬁcﬂulﬁnmue
lease.

Finance leases italized at the of the lease at the incepti datenﬁitnlucufuu!ﬂmdpmot.irluw.Alﬂ:prmw]uconhcminimnmlasemynnh.lnu;:ymtsm
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rte of imtereit oo the remaining balance of the lisbility. Finauce iaiges are recugnlzed n finance costs in
lh:mlunmlnfpml'ﬂmdbas.unlﬂ&:ymdhealylm'bmbktnquﬁfﬁnglssm.huhimaselheymnphlﬁnﬂinmmeﬁﬂlMCmmEcnnnlpolicymﬂwb(xmvhgm

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is i seasunable certatnty that the Company will obtamn ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments arc recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term ml:sslh:p-ynmuremumdminauseinlﬁewithnwdgmml
mmwmwkmmhwmfonm increase.

‘Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
Iinchuisw:nheleuelﬂms.hiii:ldim:tml‘ncum:dinnqzclin‘mz|ndlmngingmqmﬁnglessemlddedwth:nnyinyammmfthclamu;dmdmhulwnllzlusewmmlh:sme
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Provision and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Apmisimismsnimdwmrhecunmh-sapresemoaﬁg;ﬁm(bgalcrmucﬁw)u::mulurpnstmilispmhhk!hnuomﬂwofm e ic by will be required 1o
setlle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisi are not di 10 their present value and are de ined based on the best esti quired 10 settle the
obli.gnimnu:rq;mingd.m'n:uesﬁmhe:mmwdnlm:wmmxemmjmdwmmcmlbmmus,

Contingent liabilities

Ammﬁggmlﬁabﬂhyislgussiblcohﬁgxﬁonlhlar‘msﬁunm!m b i will be by the. of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will b quired 1o setile the obligation. A i liability also arises in extremely rare cases,

whuethae'nlElbﬂhydnlnmbermgﬂadbu:uchmbemnswedmﬁ:bly the Company docs not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the
probability of outflow of resources is remote.
isi liabilities, conti assets and i are reviewed at cach balance sheet date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund

The Company contributed to employees provident fund benefits through a trust "Max Financial Services Limited Provident Fund Trust” managed by Max Financial Services Limited (erstwhile Max India
Limited) whereby amounts determined at a ﬁmipuu:nugeom:icmhﬁuunh:plowsmdmmdmmm every month. The benefit vests upon commencement of the employment. The interest rate
payabiebyhmm!olh:bmeﬁcilriﬁnu'yyurisnoliﬁedbyuacgmummmdﬂxCcm;-nyhumnhﬁgaﬁcnmmahgoodlhcﬂmﬁﬂ.ifmy,bﬂwmlh:mﬁm the investments of the trust and
‘the notified interest rate. The Company has obtained actuarial valuation to determine the shortfall, if any, as at the Balance Sheet date.

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and Iom,medisdoflhcassﬂudﬁng.mdndmglmmsindudnihndmueﬂmdnndddnﬂmI'nhﬂityandmmnmmplum(nmhding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), mmwmmuyhm&mswmanMumwmwum through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or Joss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit (liabiliti ). The Company i the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit
expenses in statement of profit and loss
(1) Service cost i X past servi gain & loss on i and non routine

(ii) Net interest expenses or income

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected 1o be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit . The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount

that it it expects 10 pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.




W —




The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be caried forward beyond twelve months, as long tem employee benefit for purposes. Such long absences are provided for
hnsndmlh::mnﬁu\alualhnminglhc;m_ieclndunilcmﬁlmuhndall.hnywmd.Ai:nnmlglimnnsmmhnmod:ldyukmlememlmmofwﬁlanﬂhsmdmmdzhmd. The Company
p-:suml.h:lﬂwasamnmlﬁ:hilkyinmewmshm,mlhemm(ilmno(hlv:mmm:ﬁmalﬁgmmdckmmhnenlwamwmnﬂamerwingdamWhu:Cumpmyhaslbe

legal and I right to defer ﬁrnpuiodlmelhs!hcmumMuwmmbiﬁq,
Short-term obligations
Uahiﬁﬁnsiamgﬁsandnhris,ilﬂudingnmmmdwbmdi:stlulazecxpauuilnb:snﬂudwbcllyw‘:minrwdvemmlhsammcmdurmepaindmwhichm:mphymmthemhmdmie:m
ized in respect of empk i ,,.lh:mdoﬂh:mingpm‘odmdmmummdllthcammn!apa:xndmbepaidwhmlhcl'nbi.liﬁsmscubd.lh:ﬁahiﬁﬁsmmwduumlunpbyw
‘benefit obligations in the balance shest.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at hnhmdwhandmdshm-lmdupoa’lswm:uaigiul matunity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Earning per share

Basic camings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
wdghma\wgembdofu]uhyshlmsmumndingdmhgth:puiodkmjnﬂd for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)

‘that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a commesponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss ﬁu-lh:yaundlhew:ighzudamgcmbaofshammmmﬁngﬂmhg the year adjusted for the effects of all potential equity

shares.

Foreign currencies

Tems included in the ﬁnlnddmmmsmmumudmgmewmcynnh primary economic environment in which the entity operates ¢ ‘the functional currency’) the Company’s financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (') which is also the Company’s fnctional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions asc seunied un inltial recognition in the tunctional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign eomency items at the balance sheat date

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the fimctional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Newmanetary items that sre maaruryd in 108 07 RistArea) 0 0 8 Besiger s onenm p oim ivanebaned v gty SERAREE FL1AS 1 o ales ol L, Lulllal Lsusscilos, Wuiiuesy Hems ieasured A fir vilue
in 3 forEign SUTEISY 816 FANSIANS! BSTNG the Frhanor rates af the data mhan the Bis el is dstsmmrte 1

Exchange di arising on or Lati urmmryihnnrrnmgnheduinmnum-hlmepmodinnhimm.,mseuul.u.:quhuu!n:mngedlmanmam
u-imgmmnshlimnfnm—m:yimsmmnmillf:jrmmwkid:ishnmiulhewi:hlh:mnﬂimorthewnwlmsmﬂzmmgeh fair value of the item (ie, translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement 2
F:irwh-iﬂhlprieuhnlwmndbcmwdmun.n.uﬂ.-;.v‘:lmn-msl-rnlhbiﬁlyinmmd-tymmmnbmo:nmnluwudmml i! date. ibe tair
mcmmm:mummmw:hemumﬁxmcmumm?hudm
(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, o
[Ei)hzh:nhsmr.eul'lmdmmahmmw»mmmhmnmwﬁlbﬂky

inci the most market must b ible by the Company,
m&h’muuf:n:ssdnrlliabihyi;mmwuihg!heasmpﬁmhtmmmdmwuddmwhmp-kingmussaulhhﬂity.usumingthalmuiﬂmmwinmicbl:ﬂ
interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market partici t's ability to 'beneﬁlsbyminglh:assainiuhighmmdbmmabyseuhghmmmﬂn
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

1s based on

A.linssdsmdlilhilhieshwhiehﬁhulukmsmed«ﬁsdmh&eﬁmndﬂmmmmumguiaedwmmﬁh—mmhimby,dmmednEullnws.buednnl.bclawmlnﬂhpmﬂmi:

to the fair value as a whole:
ﬁ)Lwdl-Qm(umdjwm)mrkﬁpﬁmh-uiwmus&ﬁmﬁmlmulhbﬂiﬁa
(lj)l.l:wlZ-Vahm:ionmdmiqu:fnrwhidtdlelowﬁ(lndilmn!lﬁnh ignil 10 the fair valu is directly or indirectly observable
(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signifi to the fair value is uncbservable

For assets and I.'nbﬂiﬁ:slhulamrmoguiaedhlhcﬁnmdﬂsmaummamnﬁnghasis.themmpmydﬂmhrswmha transfers have occurred betweea levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
wegarialionthsedmm:lm-mlzveiinputmliss'uni&ammheﬁixwm:mswmmunwhok)-lhuﬂaruehrcparﬁngpuiﬂd.
'I:Isisnm:nmmﬁ.s:smmn'nzmlicvfuﬁhw]n:ﬂnherﬁirvﬂncrdnddisdosumamﬁmhlhnﬂnamnw.

- Disclosures for valuation methords, significant estimates and assumptions

- Quantitative di: of fair hierarchy

- Investment in unquoted equity shares

- Financial instruments ( including those carried at amortised cost)

Recent sccounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Raules, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16

Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of et sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the
directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The
‘Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 37

Frovisions, Contmgent Liahies and Contingent Asscts - The amendment specifics that the *cost of fulfilling” & coniract comprises the *costs that relate directly to the contract’ Costs that relate directly to a
eamm:nndlh:rh:inm,mmu.leoslsurﬁnlﬁuinglhulwmct{mmplsww!dbedimcthbu-.mrnuls)uraualhuﬁenurmh:mstslbalmhmﬁreulymﬂuﬁlﬁngmmns(mmpkwmldbcme
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item ofpmpmnplmndnqnipumusdinﬁ:lﬁ]ﬁn;lkwmu}.Thecﬂ'euh:dal:fcradopﬁonoﬂhismmdmmlismlpaiodsbqhning on or after April
1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. mcmmmhammmmmmmuummwumum

Signifi jud stimates and
hﬁcp’msol'ln)'b’ingMcuwsmingpoﬁﬁﬂ,mmmmmm:folhwhg}udgmls,whid:bawﬁtmns&signi&lmeﬂ'mmlbclmmmlsremgnimdhlh:ﬁnm:i&lmm.
() Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lessee
mcommdmminsﬁelﬂsem-smemmhblcmurm:hse.mahawﬁhmypuimsw\mbymopﬁmmmdlheleaseifiﬁsmmbiymhwbemﬁsd.mmpuims
cmuudbymopﬁmtomimmhehsqiﬁtismmblyminmbbemdm

mmmmmhummlmmmmmmmmmmmhﬁ" i ing whether it is certain whether or not to exercise the option to
mwwortmhnulhclusnmtis,ilmmidu!nuﬂnmuﬁauslh1ml:mmumichmliwﬁxh ise either the renewal or ination. Afler the date, the Company
msﬂselnminhminsigniﬁumcmu-mngcmdmmshtiswﬂhiniummlmd:mir.s:bﬁihy:omuiuu-nm|nancisemenpﬁmmmawmjnm(eg,mmdmnr

leaschold impr or ion to the leased asset)




Py




The Company included the renewal period as part of the lease tem for leases nrphmnndmm‘.:hnywizhshmwnm-anodhb&:pmod(i.c.mmewﬁkemn).m(!mmy typically exercises its option to
renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative effect on production if a replacanent asset is not readily available. The renewal periods for leases of plant and machinery with longer non-
ised. Furthy the periods covered by termination options are included as part

cancellable periods (i.e., 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease term as these are not certain 10 be
of the lease term only when they are reasonably certain not to be exercised

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the tens and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term ool conslituliug & wajor pust of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments Dol amounting 1o substantially all of the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases

Estimates and assumptions
'nnkgynssnmpﬁmsumn:-nh:gﬂwﬁmmdahukq'mnesoruﬁmﬁmmuimyumcmﬁngdunmnhawa significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
i and ions about future dy bawnu.my:lungedmwmﬂmn\mgsadmmman’uingqudlheemhu&uflh:tmpmy,smdﬁmgsmmﬂu::dinm:
assumptions when they occur.

(a) Defined henefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.c. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actusl developments in the
tuture. ‘These include th ination of the di nte, fi increases, mortality rates and fusture pension increases. Due to th ity of the valuation, the i yptions and its long-
mmnnwe.adeﬁnedbmduobliyz‘m‘:shightysmsiﬁwmdnngsinmusmnptkm,Allumpﬁmsmwvicwmataohmdamhdn:rminfngmerppwprimdimmlnh.mgm
considers the interest rates of long-term bonds with polated maturity ing to the expected duration Dflhedcﬁndhcndluhﬁpﬁw.mmmﬂhym:ilhwmpubﬁdymmuc
nmml.irynbbiﬂbespn:iﬁcmn‘iﬁ.l:umeummmmhmmwmmﬁﬁmmﬁmmm.ﬁmhedﬂlilslmwnammpﬁmnmhdmﬁngnunmiﬁ!y:mmii

(b) Fair value of financial i
Whmlheﬁi:vl]ueufﬁmn:h]lssmmdMﬁﬂlhﬂiﬁumﬂdhﬂnhmmmhﬂmmmmmuminacﬁv:mrlus.thdrﬁirvﬂlxi.!mﬁsmedlsingwmﬁm
techniques including LheDisemmnudClshFlw(DCF]modd.Ihhlpmswumemoddsmukmﬁunohsavnblemaﬂiﬁswhﬂ:possibhmwhuelhisisnuFasibie.lmofjud;mlismquimin

ishing fair values. include iderati uriwxnsmu!iquidilyﬁs\:.md.i!riskandmti]i:y.chnguinampﬁqmabcmms:ﬁmnmuxmﬂrhmwdﬁhw!\worﬁmmw
instrumwnty, The Company use Het asset valuc K valuative ul lavestssent Lo mutal find,

(c) Impairment of Financial assets
The:'mp-irmmlpswhiomofﬁmndﬂusdsmhsdmlmpﬁuulbmmkord:ﬁultndnqaemdlossnh.mc(!m;xnym' ds in making these jons and selecting the inputs to the
mmummhﬁmCmmy:mﬂhiﬂuy.nisﬁngmmdﬁumu“nu forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

1A} kmparrment of non-Fmancial seeste
mf;mnpanynsssalteacnmtmgd:l:wbdhumhmindimin\halanassamybchnp-imtUauyhdhﬁmudsu.mwhmmulhnp-hmmmﬂhuﬁrmmaﬁmqmmem
estimates the asset’s amount. An asscts amount is the higher of an asset’s CGU'S &irw!wleumnl’dimllndmtalmhmnisdnumhmdhmindivﬂmnsﬂ.mm:
lssddn::m!gcnnwashinﬂownhumhrgdyhldqmdmmfmm:ﬁunmmeunm'surum.Wh«euznnyhgnmormassda-(:ﬁllanmdsiummunmum.mnmis
considered impaired and is written down 10 its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that réflects
current market as: o thctim:valueormuzyndm:risksspedﬁnwlh:nm.hdﬂumﬁuﬁhdmlmmnfﬂmﬂmtmﬂdmaﬁmnmukmhmm[fwm
transactions caer ap piummmlimmnddisused.Thmakuhﬁaumwobomwdbywhnﬁmmhipﬁs,ormh«ﬁiwﬂmhﬂhm.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]






Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

3 Property, plant and equipment (Rs in Lacs)

Particulars Office equipment  Furniture and fixture Computers and data Motor Car Total Right of Use Grand Total
processing units Assets*
At cost
As at March 31, 2022 6.04 057 11.61 - 18.22 1,537.74 1,555.96
Additions 0.16 227 - 243 - 243
Disposals - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 6.20 057 13.88 - 20.65 1,537.74 1,558.39
Additions 523 2234 28.07 - 28.07
Disposals - 427.27 427.27
As at March 31, 2024 6.20 057 19.11 22.84 48.72 1,110.47 1,159.19
Depreciation - =
As at March 31, 2022 3.09 035 4.72 - 8.16 181.31 189.47
Additions 0.82 0.08 320 - 4.10 163.72 167.82
Disposals - 5 . = = = -
As at March 31, 2023 391 0.43 7.92 - 12.26 345.03 357.29
Additions 0.53 0.07 4.13 183 6.56 171.52 178.08
Disposals = 87.20 87.20
As at March 31, 2024 444 050 12.05 1.83 18.82 429.35 448.17
Net carrying amount - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.76 0.08 7.06 21.01 29.91 681.12 711.03
—

As at March 31, 2023 229 0.15 5.96 - 8.40 1_,192.'.'1 1,201.11

* Refer Note 3.(a)




-
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3.(a) Right of Use Assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,192.71 1,356.43
Addition = =
Derecognition of Right to Use Assets (340.17) -
Depreciation 171.42 163.72
Balance at the closing of the year 681.12 1!192.'.'1

The Company has lease contracts for buildings from related parties. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. The Company is
restricted from assigning or sub leasing the leased assets.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the nts during the year:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Building Total
As at April 01, 2022 1.356.43 1.356.43
Additions - -
Reclassified from prepaid exp - -
_Lepreciation expense / (163.72) (163.72)
As at March 31, 2023 1,192.71 1,192.71
Additions - -
Derecognition of Right to Use Asset (340.17) (340.17)
Depreciation expense (171.42) ) (171.42)
As at March 31, 2024 601.12 _ e8L1z
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Building Total
As at April 01, 2022 1.505.60 1.505.60
Additions " &
Accretion of interest 109.55 109.55
Payments (179.48) (179.48)
As at March 31, 2023 1,435.67 1,435.67
Additions ~ ~
Accretion of interest 140.40 140.40
Payments (236.80) (236.80)
Der ition of Lease Liabilities (412.73) (412.73)
As at March 31, 2024 926.54 926.54
. (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current lease liabilities 110.72 107.30
Non-current lease labilities 815.82 1,327.95
Total 926.54 1.435.25
The details regarding the maturity analysis of lease liabilities As at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 on an undiscounted basis:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within one year 206.40 179.48
After one year but not more than five years 690,99 71791
Nluie Wiaii Lse seais 2915 537.85
Total 926,54 143524

Considering the lease term of the leases, the effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11%.
The Company does not face a significant Tiquidity risk with regard tn its lease liahilities as the rent assets are sufficient to mest the obligatione related to Isace liabilitieo

a5 and when they fall dus.

The Mllowing are the amonnrs recagnicad m pratt or lnss:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 171.42 163.72
Interest expense on lease liabilities 140.40 109.55
Total amount r ised in profit or loss 311.82 27327
qEO-
v ~—
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

4,

Investment Property

At cost

As at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2023
Addlduis
Disposals/Adjustment
As at March 31, 2024

Amortization

As at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2023
Additions

Disposals

As at March 31, 2024

Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2024
As at March 31, 2023

(Rs in Lacs)
Work Well Suites Work Well Suites Total
Max House Okhla Max Tower
277.96 - 277.96
65.40 91.15 156.55
343.36 91.15 434 51
< 91.15 91.15
343.36 - 343.36
3139 - 31.39
31.07 31.07
62.46 - 62.46
3047 9.13 39.60
9.13 9.13
92.93 - 92.93
250.43 - 250.43
280.90 91.15 372.05

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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5. Other Intangible assets

(Rs in Lacs)
Computer software Total

At cost
As at March 31, 2022 0.26 0.26
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2023 0.26 0.26
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2024 0.26 0.26

Amortization

As at March 31, 2022 0.25 0.25

Additions 3
Disposals

As at March 31, 2023 0.25 0.25

Additions _ - -
Disposals

As at March 31, 2024 0.25 0.25

Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 0.01 0.01
As at March 31, 2023 < 0.01 0.01







Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particuars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

& Nom Current Other financial nerete
A. Investment carried at cost
i) Investment in equity shares

Azure Hospitality Private Limited
100 (Mureh 31, 2058~ 10U Lauity Shares ol Ks. 10 each lully pald up 0.03 0.03

A Bnvestom nl b peeferme shares

Azure Hospitality Private Limited

76,15,947, Series U (March 31, 202§ - 76,15,947) Prefernce shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,085.25 2,085.25
86,18,882, Series C (March 31, 2022 - 86,18,882) Prefernce shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 2,359.84 2,359.85
Less:  Provision for diminuition in value of investment (4,445.12) -

- 4445.13
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments « - 4,445.13

Aggregate book value of quoted investments -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

(ii) Trade receivables

Trade receivables - considered good 627.18 897.73
627.18 897.73
==
|Ageing of trade receivable Out ing for following periods from due date of payment
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good Not Due | <6 months b m::’l:sl 1-2 years | 2-3 years >3 years Total
As on March 31, 2024 627.18 - - - - - 627.18
As on March 31, 2023 605.97 291.76 - 897.73
(ifi) Other financial assets (Valued at amortized cost)
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months
Performance Guarantee 737.26 398.07
737.26 398.07
7  Deferred tax liabilities
(i) Deferred tax liability
Fixed Assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation charged for the financial reporting period
Gross deferred tax liability 298.64 331.95
(ii) Deferred tax assets 298.64 331.95
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis
Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Unabsorbed depreciation 71.27 31.67
Gross deferred tax assets 1721 3167
Deferred Tax Assel 221.37 300
8. Other non current assets (unsecured considered good)
Tax deducted at source recoverable 118.06 112.06
118.06 112.06
e

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
9. Inventories
Consumable Materials 12.17 14.57
12,17 14.57
10. Current financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables - considered good 711.61 509.99
Trade reccivables - considered doubtful - -
Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivable considered doubtful
-others - -
711.61 509.99
Ageing of trade receivable Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good Not Due | <6 months 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2> 3 years Total
As on March 31, 2024 270.56 365.79 46.00 29.26 - 711.61
As on March 31, 2023 503.34 4.58 2.07 - 509.99
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 46.14 35.73
Cash in hand 1.25 12.99
47.39 48.72
(iii) Other financial assets
(i) Receivable from related parties 104.67 -
(ii) Accrued Income 194.11 -
298.78 =
11. Other current assets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances to suppliers 52.98 42,27
Advances to employees 0.36 2.83
Prepaid expenses 6.67 335
Balance with statutory authorities 150.91 201.93
Security deposits 3291 58.47
243.83 308.85

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
12 (i) Share capital and other equity

(i) Equity share capital

(Rs in Lacs)
Particuars Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
a) Authorized
50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 500.00 500.00
(Previous year 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)
500.00 500.00
=
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
20,50,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each 205.00 205.00
(Previous year 20,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 205.00 205.00
b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares No. of shares (Rs. In lacs) No. of shares (Rs. In lacs)
At the beginning of the year 20,50,000 205.00 20,50.000 205.00
Add: Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year 20.50,000 205.00 20.50,000 205.00

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend if any, proposed by

the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, afier di
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

ibution of all preferential The

Name of the Shareholder
No. of shares %o held No. of shares %o held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Its Nominees 20,50,000 100.00% 20,50,000 100.00%
€) Details of shares held by holding company
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
No. of shares % held No. of shares %o held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
20,50,000 100.00% 20,50,000 100.00%

Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Its Nominees

) Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

g) Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Arai Damslss Mams 180, Ui siisies | J6 UL OGL SUARES | Yo LIUAYE WUFINY HE year |
March 31,2024 |Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Its Nominees 20,50,000 mo.W/g' Nil
March 31,2023 |Max Estates Limited The Holding Company and Its Nominees 20,50.000 100.00%) Nil

| This space has been intentionally left blank]
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12 (ii) Other equity

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) (refer note a below) 4,446.00 4,446.00
Employee stock options outstanding (refer note b below) 18.29 11.30
Retained eamings (refer note ¢ below) (6,586.32) (2,090.43)
Other equity (refer note d below) 13.54 14.71
(2,108.49) 2,381.58
Notes:
a) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)
Al lie begluning ol'tle yeus 4440,00 440,00
Add: additions during the year " "
At the end of the year 4,446.00 4,446.00
b) Employee stock options outstanding (refer note 29.02)
At the beginning of the year 11.30 8.73
Add: expenses recognized during the year 6.99 2:57
1629, 1L30
¢) Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year (2,090.43) (2,185.01)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (4,495.89) 94.58
At the end of the year (6,586.32) (2,090.43)
d) Other equity
At the beginning of the year 14.71 15.08
Re-measurement of post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) (item of OCI) (1.18) (0.37)
13.54 14.71

At the end of the year
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs.in Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Non Current Liability
13. (i) Lease Liabilities
Lease Liability 815.82 1,327.95
815.82 1,327.95
(ii) Other financial liabilities
Security Deposit 1,279.10 935.54
Deferred Finance Income (Security deposit) 141.01 61.78
1,420.11 997.32
14.  Long term provision
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 29) 13.66 9.59
Provision for Leave Encashment 16.10 1.14
29.76 10.73
15.  Current financial liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings
Current maturities of long term borrowings 4.01
Loan from related party ( Unsecured ) 1,280.24 1,994.57
1,284.25 1,994.57
(ii) Lease Liabilities
Lease Liability 110.72 107.30
110.72 107.30
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises® 24.02
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises # 1,239.57 1,058.88
1,263.59 1,058.88
Trade Payables (incl. Capital Creditors) ageing schedule as on 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of ayment
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years
24.02 - - =
553.59 334.39 172.68 178.91
March 2023

Trade Payables (incl. Capital Creditors) ageing schedule as on 31si
Particulars

[4) nding for following periods from due date of Envment
<1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years

(i) MSME z

(ii)_ Others 685.39

3532 146.70

191.47

(i) Disputed dues-MSME -

| (iv) Disputed dues -others -

* Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

As per the Act, the Company is required to identify the Micro and small suppliers and pay them interest on overdue beyond the specified period irrespective of the terms
agreed with such suppliers. Based on the information available with the Company, none of the creditors have confirmed the applicability of act on them. Hence, the liability

of the interest and disclosure are not required to be discl in

# Trade payables include due to related parties Rs. 123.88 lacs ( Previous Year ending March 31 2023

(iv) Uther financial liabilities
luterest acuiued bul wol due
Deferred Finance Income (Security Deposit)

‘Omer current liabilities

Statutory dues
Advance received from Customer

Short term provision

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for gratuity (refer note 29)
Provision for T S

- Rs. 147.57 lacs)
608.02 473.54
82.97 -
550.58 473.54
112.15 29.35
8.99 1141
121.14 40.76
0.40 10.83
0.12 0.10
139.37 -
139.89 10.93
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
18.  Revenue from operations
Revenue from Rentals 3,095.60 3,580.32
3.09560 358032
19.  Other income
Interest received from income tax refund 5.59 3.88
Interest Income - 173.97
Other non-operating income 131.95 36.40
Liabilities no longer required written back 6.93 -
Unwinding of discount on Security deposit 73.76 -
Profit on derecognition of Right of Use Asset 73.37 -
Miscellaneous Income 5.25 -
296.85 214.25
20.  Cost of material consumed, construction & othor related project cost
Inventories at beginning of vear 1157 16.42
Add: Purchases
Construction & development Cost - :
Construction Expenses 38.11 1,013.69
52.68 1,030.12
Less. fuvenilory al tlic eud ol year 12.17 14.57
Cost of material consumed, construction & other related project cost 40.51 1,015.55
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
21. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 366.60 221.78
Contribution to provident and other funds 18.31 11,10
Emplayee stock aption scheme 7.00 757
Uratuity cxpeise (ol nole 29) 92.19 3.08
Stafl welluse eapenscs m AR M
404.33 244.40
22. Finance costs
Tnterest an debts and borrowings 150.U6 186.28
Interest on lease liability 140.40 163.01
Interest on Security Deposit Received - Ind AS Adjustment 68.13 64.28
Bank charges 0.24 0.15
358.83 413.72
23. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3 and 6) 46.16 35.12
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 5) - -
Depreciation on right to use asset (refer note 3a) 171.42 163.72
217.58 198.84
24. Other expense
Repairs and maintenance 0.66 4.35
Insurance 4.98 1.24
Rates & Taxes 12,67 5.01
Legal and professional 51.23 133.50
Travelling and conveyance 16.09 2.13
Facility Management
-Manpower 766.22 564.77
-Electricity 340.31 250.83
-Repairs and maintenance 844.60 622,53
Auditorium Running 44.93 68.12
Printing & Stationery. 0.06 1.04
Postage, Courier and Telephones 1.99 2.95
CSR Expenditure 50.00 -
Donation 6.00 -
Business Promotion 18.18 21.23
Recruitment Expenses 7.21 16.18
Sales & Marlcoting Cxpenscs 5.20 2598
Co-Working expenses 33.50 67.29
Miscellaneous expenses 1.10 1.32
2,204.93 1,788.47
24(i)  Provision for diminuition in value of investment 4,445.12 -
4.445.12 -
Payment to auditor (included in legal and professional fee)
As auditor:
Audit fee 0.50 0.50
Other services (certification fees) 0.40 0.40
0.90 0.90
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Max Asset Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

25

26

Other comprehensive income
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (2.91) (0.49)
Income tax effect 0.73 0.12
(2.18) 037)
Earning Per Share
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Basic EPS
Profit/(loss) after tax (Rs. in Lacs) (4,495.89) 94.58
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereon - -
Net profit/(loes) for calculation of basic EPS (4,495.89) 94,50
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 20,50,000 20,50,000
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (219.31) 4.61
Dilutive EPS
Profit/(loss) afler tax (Rs in Tacs) (4,495.89) 94,58
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for dilutive 20,50,000 20,50,000
earnings per share (Nos)*
4.61

—_ Goasy

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

27 Income Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the period/year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

Profit and loss section

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars
for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current income tax :
Current tax 139.37 -
MAT credit entitlement - 7.22
Deferred tax : )
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 77.67 31.79
217.04 39.01

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

OCT section ;
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the period :

Particulars

Tui (e year ended

_March 31,2024  March 31,2023

Income tax charge/(credit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charged to OCI

1.58

Tui (e yean ended
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28 Commitments and contingencies

a) Other commitments

b) Contingent Liability

(Rs. In lacs)
Particulars for the year ended  for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not accounted for - -
Less: Capital advances " =
Net commitments - 25
Nil Nil
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CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

29

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under Gratuity Plan, every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on

departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed vear of service.

(Rs. in lacs)
As at As at
a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 8.23 7.90
Current service cost 8.51 4.13
Interest expense 0.68 0.57
Benefit paid (5.23) (3.88)
Acquisition adjustment - "
Remeasurement of (Gain)/loss in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions - <
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumpti 1.58 (0.49)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments - -
Defined benefit obligation at year end 13.77 8.23
b) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Employer contribution - -
Fennuivirarniunt of (50#0) /1600 in other somprahansive meome - -
Pale valuc of plau asscls al yeai eud - =
c) Net defined benefit asset/ (Habllity) recognized in the balance sheet
Fait value of plan assels
Present value of defined benefit obligation 13.77 8.23
Amount recognized in balance sheet- asset / (liability) (13.77) (8.23)
d) Net defined benefit expense (recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the year )
Current service cost 8.51 4.13
Past service cost - =
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.68 0.57
Expected return on plan assets
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 9.19 4.69
(e) Remeasurment (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.58 (0.49)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adjustments
Recognised in other comprehensive income 1.58 (0.49)
f) Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds 0% 0%
g) Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation
Assumption particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Discount rate 7.09% 7.36%
Salary escalation rate 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality Rate (% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%
For the year ended For the year ended
h) Quantitative ivity analysis for significant ptions is as below: March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Discount rate
Incrensc by 0,50% (1.01) (U.6U)
Decrease by 0.50% L1 0.75
Salary growth rate
Increase by 0.50% 1.08 0.72
Decrease by 0.50% (0.99) (0.67)

i) The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 16.22 Years (March 31, 2023 : 14.09 years)

i) The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

k) Discount rate is hased on the prevailing market yislds of Indian Government ceourition ag at the balanece sheet date for the estimated o of e ubligativus.

1) The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in

key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year.







29.01 Leave Encashment (unfunded)
The Company recognises the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial valuation.

The expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the year :

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Liability at the beginning of the year 11.56 16.32
Benefits paid during the year (4.62) (6.49)
Provided during the year 18.25 1.73

25.19 11.56

Liability at the end of the year
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Max Assets Services Limited
CIN: U74999PB2016PLC045648
Notes forming part of the financial statements

30 Segment reporting
The Company is a one segment company in the business of Facility Management. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the Company
views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’
31 Financial instruments
The comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories that are not measured at fair value are as follows:
(Rs. in Lacs)
Category Carrying value Fair Value
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) Financial asset at amortized cost
Trade receivables 1,338.79 1.407.72 1,338.79 1,407.72
Cash and cash eauivalents 17.39 18.72 47.39 48.72
Other financial assets 1,036.04 398.07 1,036.04 398.07
2) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non current & current
Borrowings 1,290.59 1,994.57 1,290.59 1,994.57
Teasc Tiahilitics 926.53 143525 976 53 143575
Uther financial habilities 211110 1,470 86 211110 1,170.86
Trade payables 1,263.59 1,058.88 1,263.59 1,058.88
3) Financial asset carried at fair value through
statement of profit & loss
Investments - 4.445.13 - 4.445.13
The Company assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans and advances to related parties, interest
receivable, trade payables, capital creditors are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific
country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation,
allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.
The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other noncurrent financial liabilities are
estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
valuation requires management to use observable and unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant observable and unobservable
inputs are disclosed in the table below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant
observable and unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value. .
The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and other non-current financial liabilities are determined by using DCF method
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31,
2024 was assessed to be insigmihcant.
31.01 Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant eftect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 5. eCimyues that use 1nputs that have a siembicant eHect on the recarded fair valine that are not hased on nhservahle marker data

(1) Quantitative disclosnre of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets ag on March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31. 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Trade receivables 1,338.79 - - 1,338.79
Cash and cash equivalents 47.39 - - 47.39
Investments - - - -
Other financial assets 1,036.04 - - 1,036.04
Py antitative disbosis vl Lau valus omsnamomnd hismsihy e Goaneda) assee ns on Mareh 31, 2003
Particulars Currj;lug value Fair value
Mareh 31, 2023
Tevel 1 Tovel ? Level 3
Trade receivables 1,407.72 - - 1,407.72
ash and cash equivalents 18.72 - - 48.72
Tnvestments 444513 1,445.12
Other financial assets 398.07 - - 398.07







(iii) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31. 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non current & current
Borrowings 1,290.59 - - 1,290.59
Lease Liabilities 926.53 - - 926.53
Otbher financial liabilities 2,111.10 - - ©2,111L.10
Trade payables 1,263.59 - - 1,263.59

(iv) Quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2023

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 1,994.57 - - 1,994.57
Lease Liabilities 1,435.25 - - 1,435.25
Other financial liabilities 1,470.86 - - 1,470.86

rade paya 1,058.88 - - 1,058.88

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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32 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s has instituted an overall risk management programme which also focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimize potential adverse effects on
the Company’s financial performance. The Corporate Finance department, evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the various stakeholders.

The Company is exposed to capital risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are managed pro-actively by the Senior Management of the Company, duly supported by
various Groups and Committees.

a) Capital risk
The Company’s objective when ing capital is to safeguard its ability to inuc as a going concern in order to provide retums to its shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to provide for sufficient capital expansion. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notea 8, cash and cash

equivalents disclosed in note 5 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company employees prudent liquidity risk management practices
which inter alia means maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securitics and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Given the nature

of the underlying busi the corp finance maintains flexibility in funding hy maintaining y nnder itted credit lines and thic way liquidity riok io mitigated by the
availahility of finds to cover future i Cash flow fe are prepared 0ot iily for e catitivs but tie Group as 2 whole and the utllkzed borrowing facilities are monitored
on a daily basis and there is adequate focus on good practi hereby the collections are d efficiently. The Company while borrowing funds for large capital
project, iates the rep hedule in such a manner that these match with the generation of cash on such investment. Longer term cash flow forecasts are updated from time to
time and reviewed by the Investment and Performance Review Committee of the Board.
The table below represents the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities at the end of March 31, 2024 based on ] undi: d pay -
Aot 01Vears | 1-5Years | Morethans | opo,
Years
Interest bearing berrowings 1.994.57 ; : 1.994.57
Trade payable 685.39 373.49 - 1,058.88
Other financial liabilities 642.62 - - 642.62
% to Total 89.89% Yol 100.00%
[March 31, 2074 —
Interest bearing borrowings 128425 a h 128425
| Trade payable 577.61 1,990.89 - 2,568.50
Other financial liabilities 801.71 - - 80171
% to Total 57.23%|  42.77% 0.00%|  100.00%
€) Credit risk
Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its oblig; under a financial or contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit

h ions and other financial

risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign
instruments.

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to cust credit risk g M.

evaluate credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. Reccivable control gement D assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Company provides credit to individuvals on exceptional basis only. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an
individual basis.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposit
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in dance with the Company’s policy. I of surplus
funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securitics. The limits are set to minimize the ion of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counter party’s
potential failure to make payments. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to low
credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in note 31 and the liquidity table
above.

d) Market riek

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial i will fl hecanse nf changes in market prices Market prices compricer threa fipan of ricks
rurency rate risk interest rate rick and other prios siele, ouch sy wquity prien vish sad senmodity piive siole Tkl lebuniais sMadial T inarkes ilshs D dile T A
borrowings, devusils, investnents aml Rnelvn ciirency recelvahles and payahles The seneitivity amaljwes m the tollemmg peotione relate te the pasition as st Marah 31, 3024, The
analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial asscts and
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2024.

(e) Interest rate risk
Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of

changes in market interest rates relates primarily o the Company’s long term debt obligation at fixed interest rate.

(Rs. in Lacs)
Xsar Increase/decreass in inlervsl rule Lifect on profit befoie Las
March 312074 0.5096 6.43
March 31,2023 0.50% 9.97
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33 Related party disclosures

Holding Company

Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not

Max Estates Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Max Towers Private Limited

Max I Limited

Max Square Limited

Pharmax Corporation Limited

Max Estates 128 Private Limited
Max Estates Gurgaon Limited
Acreage Builders Private Limited
Max Estates Gurgaon Two Limited

Directors and Key management
personnel

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear

Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney (Director)
MTr. Rishi Raj (Director)
Mr.Venkatraman (Director) (w.e.f. 1st Feb' 23)

control is Key Management personnel

Fntities eantrolled ar jointly controlled by person or entities where
person has significantly influence or entities where person having

Max Indin Limitod

Max Life Insurance Co. Limited
Vanavastra Private Limited

Antara Senior Living Limited

Max Financial Services Limited
Riga Foods LLP

Routes 2 Roots

Max Financial Services Limited
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd
Topline Electronics Private Limited
Dixon Technologies (India) Limited
Max Learning Ventures Limited
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33 (a) Details of transactions with related parties
(Rs. Inlacs)
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars for the year ended March for the year ended
31,2024 March 31, 2023
1 Reimbursement of Expenses (Paid) Max Estates Limited 4.36 154.92
Riga Foods LLP 2.16 0.74
Max Towers Private Limited = 14.68
IMr. Rohit Rajput (Director) 0.40 7.26
Antara Purukul Senior Living Limited - 0.11
Vana Enterprises Limited 2.39 -
Total 9.31 177.711
2 Revenue from Maintenance Charges Max Life Insurance Company Limited - 75.44
Max Estates Limited 45.69 46.42
Antara Senior Living Limited 29.78 24.76
Max India Limited 28.83 84.73
Routes 2 Roots 8.74 4.54
Max Towers Private Limited 27.713 1.58
Max Financial Services Limited 19.88 -
Dixon Technologies (India) Limited 487 -
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd 5.78 -
Total 171.30 23747
3 Revenue from Auditorium Rental and Food Charges Antara Senior Living Limited 0.50 -
Acreage Builders Private Limited 032
Antara Assisted Care Services Limit 225
Routes 2 Roots 0.19 0.20
Max Estates Limited 12.78 0.34
Max Square Limited 0.79
Max Estates 128 Private Limited 9.86 =
Max Towers Private Limitad 225 -
Max India Foundation 038 -
Max India Limited 1.34 -
gpling Electronics Private Limited 0.75
Riga Foods LLP 112 =
Max Financial Services Limited 0.70 -
Total 33.23 0.54
4 Revenue from Electricity Charges Max Estates Limited 25.09 7.99
Antara Senior Living Limited 6.49 4.60
Max Towers Private Limited 838 =
Pharmax Corporation Limited 6.26 -
Max Life Insurance Company Limited - 3.94
Max India Limited 5.83 14.08
Routes 2 Roots 3.65 3.10
Riga Foods LLP - 0.48
Max Learning Ventures Limited 433 1.49
Max Financial Services Limited 5.07 =
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Lid 0.97 -
Total 66.07 35.68
5 Revenue from DG Charges Max Estates Limited - 034
Antara Senior Living Limited - 0.12
Max India Limited - 1.72
Routes 2 Roots - 0.12
Riga Foods LLP - 0.02
Max Learning Ventures Limited - 0.06
Total - 238
6 Revenue from Extra Hours Operation Charges Routes 2 Roots - 0.04
Total - 0.04
7 |Revenue from Access Card Max Estates Limited - 0.07
Max India Limited - 0.01
Routes 2 Roots = 0.01
Riga Foods LLP - -
Max Learning Ventures Limited - 0.01
Antara Senior Living Limited - =
Total - .10
H Revenue from Miscellaneous Charges Vanavastra Private T imited 1.5
pline Flertmnics Private 1 imited poa| 7.01
Max Estates 128 Private Limited (1.44)
blas LIV Lisuiaiive Cuttipany Liinhal .55
Max Speciality Films Limited (0.34)] <
Max Square Limited (0.05) -
Routes 2 Roots = =
Antara Senior Living Limited 0.03 -
Riga Foods LLP - -
Max Estates 128 Private Limited 19.76 -
| Total 26.53 9.39
9 Manpower Supply New Delhi House Services Ltd. 17.42 -
Total 17.42 -
10 |Donation Paid iMax India Foundation 50.00 -
Total 50.00 -
11 Deposit received Topline Electronics Private Limited - (.56
Tatal - 10.56
17 |Security Deposit given/Refund | Toeling Clezronics Prvaie Linital 10.56
Max Estates Limited 10.61 43.34
Pharmax Corporation Limited 10.61 43.34
Max Square Limited 317.97
Total 349.75 86.68
13 |Interest on Unsecured Loan Max Estates Limited 49.42 145.30
Total 49.42 14530
14 |Loantaken Max Estates Limited 385.00 703.00
Total 385.00 703.00
15 |Rent Paid Mas Towas Privaie Limited 69,45 1.01
Max Frtates Limitgil 94 R
|Pharmax Corporation Limited _ 77 40
e !iﬂii 156.01
16 |Loantaken repaid back Max Estates Limited 1,099.57 191.00
Total 1,099.57 191.00
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33

(b) Balances outstanding at year end
(Rs. In lacs)
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Trade receivables/(Trade Payables) Max Estates Limited (incL reimbursement) 35.61 16.48
Antara Senior Living Limted 543 2.08
Max Financial Services Limited 15.88 3.06
Max India Limited 7.83 10.50
Max Life Insurance Company Limited - (0.55)
Max Towers Private Limited 1.09 14.49
Max Speciality Films Limited - 0.34
Routes 2 Roots 0.65 0.90
Max Leaming Ventures Limited 1.92 2.27
RIGA Foods LLP 0.24 0.64
Topline Electronics India Private Limited - 2
New Delhi House Services Limited - -
Max Estates Limited 21.04 -
Max Ventures Investment Holding Pvt Ltd 4.21 -
Acreage Builders Private Limited 0.38 -
Muibiuiu Asslslod Usic Da v bous Ll L4 -
Plianinas Corporation Lid 139 -
Max |owers Private Limited (1.18) -
Max Estates Limited (114.51) -
Max Estates 128 Private Limited 22.66 -
Total (12.38) 50.21
2 Security Deposit received Max Estates Limited 21.90 21.90
Max India Limited 7.87 7.87
Topline Electronics India Private Limited - 1056 ]
Max Financial Services Limited 5.03 5.03
Moy Vantrse Imrectmant Holding Tt T 44 | il LEn
Antara Senior Living Limited 7.87 7.87
Routes 2 Roots 1.65 1.02
'Vanavastra Private Limited - 18.11
Total 45.90 73.94
3 |Security Deposit given Max Towers Private Limited 311.38 398.07
Max Estates Limited 70.26 16.31
Pharmax Corporation Limited 70.26 16.31
Max Square Limited 317.97 -
@ 769.87 430.69
4 Loan outstanding Max Estates Limited 1,280.24 1.992.26
Total 1,280.24 1,992.26
5 ‘Compulsory Convertible Debentures Max Estates Limited 2,214.00 2.214.00
Max I Limited 2,232.00 2.232.00
Total 4.446.00 4,446.00
6 Interest on Unsecured Loan outstanding Max Estates Limited 608.02 571.37
Total 7cS0A 608.02 571.37

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
a) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to thosc that prevail in arm's length trans

b) There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables
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34  Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company, share premium and all other equity
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is that it maintain an efficient capital structure and maximize the shareholder value. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, The
Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt. interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

excluding discontinued operations.

Rs. In lacs
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings 1,284.25 1,994.57
Trade payables 1,263.59 1,058.88
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (17.39) (48.72)
Net Debt 2,500.45 3,004.73
Equity (1,903.49) 2,586.58
Total Equity (1,903.49) 2,586.58
Total Capital and net debt 596.96 559131
Geanng ratio -131% 116%
Current Asset 1313.78 882.13
Cuurent Liability 3,610.58 3.685.98
Cnrront Batio 36.59% 7o
Debt 1.284.25 1,994.57
Shareholder Equity (1,903.49) 2.586.58
Debt-Equity Ratio -67.47% 77.11%
Earnings available for debt servies 742.68 746.15
Interest 358.83 413.72
Principal 1,284.25 1.994.57
Debt Services Coverage Ratio 45.20% 30.98%
Net Income (annual) (4,495.89) 94.58
Shareholder Equity (1,903.49) 2,586.58
Return on Equity Ratio 236.19% 3.66%
Cost of Goods sold/sale NA NA
Average inventory NA NA
Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA
Net Credit Sale NA NA
Average Trade Receviable NA NA
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio Mk 1A
Net Credit Purchase NA Na
Average Trade payable NA NA
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio NA NA
Net annual sale/Revenne from Operation 3,095.60 3,580.32
Working Capital -2,296.79 2,803.85
Nel Caplial Turnover Rutlo -134.78% -127.69%
Net Profit 16627 133.59
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 3.095.60 3,580.32
Net Profit Ratio 5371% 3.73%
Eaming before interest and tax (EBIT) 525.10 547.31
Capital Employed 368.55 492258
Return on Capital employed 142.48% 11.12%
Profit (PAT) -4,495.89 94.58
Investment 368.55 4,922.58
Return on Investment -1219.90% 1.92%

35 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT

(MSMED) ACT, 2006

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According to such

identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006’ are as follows:

(Rs. In lacs)
Asat Asat
March 31,2024  March 31,2023
) Ths piinsipal wuounl wd Lo it duc dicioon (Baliig Uipdy v iy suppiier
T ilis Bpal suiniin [
Bitwanat thoanawn il ‘Ml
1} The amount of interest puid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. Nil Nil
iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this act. Nil Nil
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. Nil Nil
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor. Nil Nil

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status.o

under the MSMED.

36 i) The Company does not have any Benami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami prope



—




i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

iii) The Company does not have any transactions with struck-off companies.

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
diaries) with the und ding

v) During the year the Company have not advanced or loaned or invested finds to any other person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (1

that the Intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
d ding (whether ded in

vi) During the year the Company have not received any fund from any person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii) The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

viii) The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access rights to the
g tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software. being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting

application. Further no instance of audit trail feature bein;
37  Figures relating March 31, 2023 has been regrouped/reclassified wherever y to make them comparable with the current year figures.

38 Other disclosure requirement of Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 are not appliacble to the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Max Asset Services Limited

oy

As per our reporl of even date

-
SKno

Partner
Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of

RKDB & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN: N500427

Kishansingh Ramsinghaney

1) or)
(DIN 08490762) (DIN 00329411)

New Delhi, dated the 20th May,2024
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